

Oaklands Road Haywards Heath West Sussex RH16 1SS Switchboard: 01444 458166

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 www.midsussex.gov.uk

9 December 2022

Meetings of Council Committees are broadcast live through the <u>Mid Sussex District</u> <u>Council's YouTube channel</u>. Limited space is available to observe proceedings in-person. Those wishing to do so must reserve a seat by completing a <u>Registration Form</u> by 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting.

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of **CABINET** will be held in the **COUNCIL CHAMBER** at these offices on **MONDAY**,

19TH DECEMBER, 2022 at 5.00 pm when your attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely, KATHRYN HALL Chief Executive

AGENDA

		Pages
1.	To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any matter on the Agenda.	
2.	To receive apologies for absence.	
3.	To confirm Minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 November 2022.	3 - 4
4.	To consider any items that the Leader agrees to take as urgent business.	
5.	Clair Hall - Finance Update.	5 - 26
6.	Review of Earmarked Reserves.	27 - 30

To: **Members of Cabinet:** Councillors J Ash-Edwards (Chair), J Belsey, R Cromie, R de Mierre, S Hillier, R Salisbury and N Webster

Working together for a better Mid Sussex



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet held on 21st November, 2022 from 4.00 pm

Present: J Ash-Edwards (Chair)

J Belsey R Cromie R de Mierre S Hillier N Webster

Absent: Councillor R Salisbury

Also Present: Councillors R Bates, R Clarke and J Dabell

1. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

None.

2. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies were received from Cllr Salisbury.

3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 17 OCTOBER 2022.

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2022 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

4. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE LEADER AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

5. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2022/23 - PROGRESS REPORT APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2022.

The Director of Resources and Organisational Development introduced the report and advised the Council was in a sustainable mid-year position despite the challenging climate.

Members discussed the reprofiling of Capital Schemes, reduction in Hackney Carriage fees and the use of Treasury Management Income to offset other increased costs to balance the budget.

In response to a question on the Dispersal of Asylum Seekers Grant, the Director of People and Commercial Services confirmed the Council is already in discussion with the required agencies regarding the UK Shared Prosperity Funding, linking this funding with other funding will enable the Council to support asylum seekers across the District.

In response to a question on the reprofiling of schemes, the Director of Resources and Organisational Development confirmed this is already underway and will be reflected in the end of year budget and will be part of the future budget setting process.

The Leader moved to vote on the recommendations which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

Cabinet recommended to Council:

(i) that £11,510 received from DLUHC in respect of Rough Sleeper Accommodation Programme grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 27;

(ii) that £82,500 received from the Home Office in respect of Dispersal of Asylum Seekers grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 28;

(iii) that £5,200 received from DLUHC in respect of new burdens grant for Temporary Pavement Licencing. be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 29;

(iv) that £280,465 received from UK Health Security Agency in respect of Track and Trace Self Isolation Administration grant be transferred to Specific Reserves as detailed in paragraph 30;

(v) that £61,542 received from DLUHC for New Burdens Council Tax Rebate scheme be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 31;

(vi) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in Table 4 in accordance with the Council's Financial Procedure rule B3;

(vii) to approve the use of the projected increase of \pounds 1,194,000 for Treasury Management income to finance the revenue budget, reducing the projected revenue overspend year end position to \pounds 41,000.

6. PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR THE SECOND QUARTER OF 2022/23.

The Director Resources and Organisational Development introduced the report which provided information on the Council's performance to the half-year position.

Members discussed the health and wellbeing interventions, usage of the leisure centres and the upcoming replacement of the toilets in The Orchards.

In response to a query on electric vehicle charging points, the Director of People and Commercial Services advised it was too early to analyse the data.

The Leader moved to vote on the recommendations which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

Cabinet noted the Council's performance in the first second of the year, identifying any areas where further reporting or information was required.

The meeting finished at 4.22 pm

Chairman

CLAIR HALL - FINANCE UPDATE

REPORT OF:	Director Resources and Organisational Development
Contact Officer:	Rafal Hejne, Interim Head of Organisational Development
	Email: rafal.hejne@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477354
Wards Affected:	All
Key Decision:	Yes
Report to:	Cabinet
	19 December 2022

Purpose of Report

1. At its meeting on 17 October 2022, Cabinet approved a procurement exercise to commission a specialist broker/agent to secure investment in the Clair Hall site. Having identified specialist partners, this report recommends Cabinet agree necessary funding to enable this work to commence.

Summary

- 2. In October, Cabinet agreed the recommendations of the specialist advisor (BOP) on a methodology for taking forward the Clair Hall project. Cabinet requested officers procure a specialist broker/agent to support the next phases of the project. This work has now been completed and officers are ready to progress this work.
- 3. In December 2021, Cabinet created a reserve of £100,000 to fund the specialist work and advice. The reserve has not yet been fully spent, however, following a market analysis and procurement exercise, additional funding will be required to complete work to deliver investment on the Clair Hall site. The report therefore recommends adding additional funds to the existing reserve.

Recommendations

- 4. The Cabinet is recommended to:
 - (i) Approve a virement of £50,000 to enable work to commence immediately.
 - (ii) Approve a further transfer of £135k from General Reserve to the Clair Hall reserve to fully deliver all three phases of this work.

Background

- 5. The Clair Hall site is located in Haywards Heath and includes Clair Hall, the Redwood Centre, and a car park. The hall is a multi-purpose venue comprising a large main hall, a function suite, studio, and bar area. The Redwood Centre is a smaller single-storey building. Both venues are well-known destinations next to Clair Park and continue to play an important part in the lives of residents.
- 6. Currently, Clair Hall is being used by the NHS, including as an important vaccination centre. The Redwood Centre is currently leased to the Scouts and sub-let to a nursery on weekdays.

- 7. The Cabinet has had a series of reports on Clair Hall in the last 12 months. Most recently, in October, the Cabinet considered and agreed the recommendations of the specialist advisor (BOP) to take forward two investment models:
 - **Model 1**: Refurbishment of the existing buildings on the site by a party who can raise the operational expenditure to maintain and run Clair Hall's existing buildings on a leasehold basis
 - **Model 3**: Development of the site by a party who can develop the site with both a cultural/community facility and facilities with other uses on a leasehold basis

Work planned

- 8. Following BOP's advice, the Cabinet requested officers to commission a specialist agent with a national reach and with experience of securing cultural anchor tenants (or having access to a specialist cultural broker) to plan and deliver the next steps.
- 9. This work has been completed and the multi-disciplinary team led by Montagu Evans, one of the largest property consultancies in the country, has been selected to lead the work. They have partnered with cultural specialist Augarde Consulting to support this commission.
- 10. The invitation to tender, as advertised through the Homes England Property and Financial Professional Services Framework, can be found at Appendix A. Please note the dates in the brief are only provisional and are subject to confirmation of an agreed work plan with the specialists.
- 11. At this stage the Council is only committing to undertake work to deliver the first stage, as agreed by the Cabinet in October. In the first instance, the work will focus on developing an approach to how the Council should market the models in order to secure the necessary investment and deliver on the success criteria agreed by the Cabinet. This will include developing the success criteria into a briefing pack which describes the expected deliverables for the site. The brief will build on the feedback from the consultation and engagement and evidence gathered to date.

Clair Hall Reserve

- 12. In December 2021, Cabinet created a reserve of £100,000 to fund the specialist work and advice in this project. The reserve has funded BOP's commission, as well as specialist advice and multiple surveys. The outcomes of this work were reported extensively in the July and October Cabinet reports.
- 13. Currently, there is £15k remaining in the reserve. Having completed the procurement exercise, officers estimate that the Council should put aside £200k in order to support the next phases of work. It is therefore recommended that a further £185k is moved to the reserve to support the work going forward. Each phase will have a decision gateway before officers progress the work.
- 14. As previously discussed, these are very difficult market conditions to deliver projects of this nature. In addition, the market for specialist support is competitive and the cost of living crisis created extra inflationary pressures on the cost of their services. The predicted costs are in line with officer expectations for work of this type and represents value for money in the current market. The investment made into this robust, evidence based approach will help improve the Council's chances to attract the necessary partners (and investment).

Financial Implications

- 15. It is proposed as part of the broader earmarked reserves review that £135k is transferred from the General Reserve to the Claire Hall Reserve with a virement being made for the £50k balance to commence the agreed work immediately.
- 16. The Council is under financial pressure and the current funding position for Clair Hall is not sustainable. As noted in the work to date, there is a need to secure an external funding source for delivering either Model 1 or Model 3 and ongoing provision of the facility. The work to date highlighted that model 1 alone would require £2.9 million in the first five years to bring the buildings up to a modern operational standard.
- 17. As part of the planned work, the Council will continue the approach to secure external funding to improve community facilities on the Clair Hall site that can benefit the residents of Hayward Heath and the wider district.
- 18. The Council has a strong record of attracting inward investment, both public and private, to support the development of our communities. The Strategic Growth Programme for Burgess Hill is the most ambitious programme of change anywhere in the region and totals some £1bn from both public and private sources.
- 19. Central to this work has been this Council's determination to secure significant community facilities for local communities; new schools and community hubs including retail shops, substantial community open space, children's play areas, allotments, and sports facilities.

Risk Management Implications

- 20. Due to high inflation and the volatility of market conditions, planning and delivering property investment projects remain extremely difficult as these factors impact the availability of funding or investors' return on investments, often making many schemes unviable. Many existing projects of this nature report significant cost increases, some to the point they become unviable. This will be monitored and will be a significant factor in the decision-making on the future of the Clair Hall site.
- 21. The work to date has enabled us to get a richer picture of the impact of the pandemic and the current economic position of the arts, and leisure sector in particular; the impact on residents' habits and needs are still emerging and will be considered further in the next stages.
- 22. There remain risks and uncertainties around planning for future provision, which will continue to be addressed through an evidence-driven approach as the work examines specific models and opportunities.

Policy Context

23. None,

Equality and Customer Service Implications

24. None

Sustainability Implications

25. None.

Background Papers

26. None

APPENDIX A



Mid Sussex District Council

Real Estate Advisor

Invitation to Tender

Information for Bidders and Submission Documents

Closing date for receipt of quotes: 12:00 (Noon) on Wednesday 16 November 2022

Provisional contract start date:

Thursday 24 November 2022

Contents

Section

Page

1.	Introduction	. 3
2.	Project Brief / Specification	. 5
3.	Method Statements – Quality Score	10
Арр	pendix A – key background documents	11
Арр	oendix B – Strategic Success Criteria	12
Ар	pendix C – The Procurement Process	14

1. Introduction

1.1 Summary of procurement

- 1.1.1. Mid Sussex District Council ("the Council") invites a commercial agent/broker to submit method statements and fee proposal for an exciting opportunity to assist the Council in securing an investment in a multi-functional community facility at the Clair Hall site, located in a prime location in Haywards Heath, West Sussex.
- 1.1.2. The Council is seeking a commercial advisor to help to lead on the work that will be delivered in stages, starting with advising the Council on the best route to market the agreed investment models. This will include preparing the briefing pack for the site with relevant stakeholders, based on the information gathered to date and any other information the agent/broker considers relevant. Further stages will include marketing the site, assessing the evaluation criteria and supporting the Council with negotiating and agreeing the terms of contractual agreement with prospectus partners. The Council is procuring for contractors to initially undertake stage 1, however, reserves the right to call off subsequent stages described in this brief.
- 1.1.3. The Council is seeking to make a single appointment, but will consider joint proposals of relevant specialists to deliver this work. The interested party (ies) will have both national reach and access to broad experience and knowledge of working with partners within the community/arts/leisure/culture sectors.
- 1.1.4. In procuring this contract, the Council is following a quotation process under the Homes England Property and Financial Professional Services Framework and will be awarding one contract for the provision of all services detailed within the specification.

1.2 Background and Context

- 1.1.5. Mid Sussex is a vibrant district that is attractive, resilient, and innovative; and one that balances social well-being, environmental protection, and sustainable growth. Our towns have growth potential, making them some of the most exciting and potentially rewarding investment locations in the United Kingdom today. Please find out more about the district in our 'Opportunity Mid Sussex' prospectus 2022.
- 1.1.6. The Clair Hall site is located close to Haywards Heath Train Station and includes Clair Hall itself, the Redwood Centre, and a surface car park (see Figures 1-3 below). Both venues are well-known destinations next to Clair Park and continue to play an important part in the lives of residents.
- 1.1.7. Clair Hall is a multi-purpose venue constructed in 1971. It comprises c1,300 sq m of singlestorey internal space providing the main multi-use hall, studio, and associated facilities. The facility was managed directly by the Council up to 2009 – and then between 2009 and September 2020, it was managed by external leisure providers on the Council's behalf. Since September 2020 the facility has been used by the NHS as a mass vaccination centre.
- 1.1.8. The dedicated car park provides 125 spaces. The Redwood Centre is a later addition to the main facility, constructed in the 1980s and let to the local Scout Association. The Scouts also permit the use of the building by a day nursery and church group.

- 1.1.9. The site is adjacent to Clair Park and Haywards Heath Cricket Ground the park forms part of the Heath Conservation Area. Users of the Park and Cricket club utilise the car park.
- 1.1.10. In December 2021, the Council agreed work to help understand investment options for the site. The Council appointed BOP Consulting (BOP), an international consultancy specialising in culture and the creative economy, to explore the feasibility of development options for Clair Hall and/or Clair Hall site. This work has now been completed and the Council agreed BOP's recommendations which set the foundation for this commission. All relevant background reports are included at Appendix A.





Figure 1: View from front of Clair Hall.

Figure 2: Aerial view of the site.



Figure 3: map of site with aerial view

2. Project Brief / Specification

2.1. Work completed to date

- 2.1.1. The interested agent/broker will build on and will take forward work completed by the Council and BOP consulting.
- 2.1.2. The Council have completed significant information gathering to support the next stages of this work:
 - The Council completed a property report, including surveys and evaluation of the buildings and the site overall. (see July Cabinet Report at Appendix A)
 - The Council established success criteria (see Appendix B) for the activation of the site. These criteria established the context, the potential and the Council's expected outcomes and impacts for the future of the site.
 - BOP undertook a mapping exercise to understand the cultural landscape of Haywards Heath and its surrounding area. This included audience analysis. (see July Cabinet Report at Appendix A)
 - BOP undertook soft market testing to explore and test the viability and feasibility of the three potential delivery models identified in the early stages of their work. This included a series of interviews with relevant sector specialists, market leaders and case studies. (see October Cabinet Report at Appendix A)
- 2.1.3. The Council has considered the advice from BOP (see October Cabinet Report at Appendix A) and wishes to bring the opportunity to the market and invite bids based upon delivery Models 1 and 3 as detailed in the BOP reports.
 - **Model** 1: Refurbishment of the existing buildings on the site by a party who can raise the operational expenditure to maintain and run Clair Hall's existing buildings on a leasehold basis.
 - **Model** 3: Development of the site by a party who can develop the site as both a cultural/community facility and facilities with other uses on a leasehold basis.

2.2. Requirements

- 2.2.1. The Council is seeking to commission an agent/broker to support it in taking the preferred models to the market. The preferred specialist should be able to advise on and lead work on both models. The Council proposes the following stages for this work.
- **2.2.2. Stage 1** will be focused on collating/agreeing all information required before both models can be marketed.
 - a. This will require the agent / broker to develop a robust and comprehensive briefing and legal pack that can be presented to market for the two agreed models. The agent/ broker will need to work closely with the Council to develop and receive sign-off for these pieces This will have regard to the outcomes of the resident consultation and engagement from 2021 (See December Cabinet Report at Appendix A), success criteria and the content of the two BOP reports and will be further developed through discussions with both officers and key stakeholders. The agent/broker will be required to advise and guide the

development of the packs, in particular regarding appropriate commercial uses (when relevant) for the site which will be in accordance with the local planning policy.

- b. The agent/broker will be required to advise as to how best to take this proposal to the market, obtain compliant bids for both the Model 1 and Model 3 delivery options and how best to assess/appraise/perform due diligence on the bids. Please note BOP has suggested potential routes to bring the two models to the market. This should be used as a guide. The Council will look for the appointed agent/broker to suggest and design the best way forward.
- c. Member approval will be required for the brief and the proposed route to market prior to progressing to Stage 2.
- 2.2.3. Stage 2 will focus on marketing and procurement.
 - a. The agent/broker will develop a full marketing strategy for the Council's consideration and approval. This to include indicative programme and marketing methodology.
 - b. The agent/broker will manage the process of marketing the Model 1 & Model 3 proposals and seek compliant bids in accordance with the Stage 1 work.
 - c. The agent/broker will also be required to undertake relevant appraisals and valuations to demonstrate that the proposals will generate sufficient capital and revenue funds to cover the cost of the new or refurbished community facility, sustainable operations and any likely surplus. This will involve the collation and assessment of all bids and the production of a report together with a recommendation regarding the preferred bidder.
 - d. Progressing to Stage 3 is subject to finding a suitable partner to deliver the required investment.
- 2.2.4. Stage 3 will focus on negotiating and finalising the agreement
 - a. The agent/broker will advise and draft the preferred form of agreement including all heads of terms.
 - b. The agent/broker will support the Council with negotiating and finalising the agreement.

2.3. Special Requirements

- 2.3.1. Asset of Community Value the Clair Hall building (excluding the Redwood Centre) is currently listed as an Asset of Community Value (ACV). The agent/broker will be required to advise regarding the status of the ACV and the most appropriate way forward ensuring that the community can express their interests, submit their bids and all due process is followed by the Council.
- 2.3.2. **Specialist knowledge**. The agent/broker will be required either to demonstrate relevant knowledge and experience to deliver work on both models and they are encouraged to use specialists with experience of working with partners within the community/arts/leisure/culture sectors, in particular facilitating agreements for trusts/CICs to manage community facilities. Please include the details of the specialists as part of your bid.
- 2.3.3. **Stakeholder Engagement** at the outset of this work the agent/broker will agree a stakeholder engagement approach. As a minimum this will include the Member Steering Group established to oversee this work and the Council's officer working group. We envisage this could 2-3 meetings in stage one for each group, plus a couple of meetings with other identified stakeholders. The frequency of these meetings is to be agreed and are subject to the proposed methodology.

2.4. Required outputs:

- 2.4.1. At the minimum the immediate stage 1 key outputs required are:
 - a. Materials for relevant meetings with stakeholders (e.g., officers, Members Steering Group) to engage them and assist with the deliver of the stage 1 outcomes;
 - b. Briefing Pack and Legal Pack for models 1 and 3;
 - c. Advice and a proposal for the delivery route for models 1 and 3. This should include a ready-to-implement approach (for Council approval at the end of stage 1).
- 2.4.2. Stage 2 and 3 outputs should be described by the interested parties in their proposal and fit their suggested methodology.

2.5. Proposals should include:

- 2.5.1. The agent/broker will be required to submit details of the following, when responding to the quality questions;
 - a. Examples of previous work and projects to demonstrate their expertise and experience in this particular sector. Evidence of experience, either direct or subcontracted, of projects including public sector and community/leisure/culture/arts facilities is required.
 - b. The proposed approach and methodology detailing how to deliver stages 1-3 of this work. This should be clear whether these relate to model 1, model 3 or both.
 - c. All staff they would use to deliver this project stipulating their roles and including full CVs. Please include details of the specialist broker in community/leisure/culture/arts sector that will support your work.

Fees

- 2.5.2. The agent/broker will be required to submit fee proposals for each stage of the project as detailed in Section 2.2.
- 2.5.3. Please provide a detailed breakdown of all the costs associated with each phase of delivering this project, in accordance with the specification and your responses to the quality questions.
- 2.5.4. It is important to note that the price score will be evaluated based on the Total Cost price shown in the last cell (denoted in grey)
- 2.5.5. The financial evaluation will account for 60% of the total score and will be scored against using the formula contained at Appendix C the Procurement Process.
- 2.5.6. All rates charged shall be fully inclusive of all expenses including but not limited to travelling/subsistence, expenses and disbursements.
- 2.5.7. Any additional charges, which form part of your proposal, should also be listed in the tables of pricing below and itemised.
- 2.5.8. All costs must be stated in pounds sterling, and exclusive of Value Added Tax

2.5.9. Please provide the cost of all elements stage 1 in the following table:

	Cost Description (add/remove rows as required)	Cost exc. VAT (£)
1		
2		
3		
4		
	Total Cost:	£

2.5.10 Please provide the following call off rates, should the council require any additional work:

	Hourly rate (£)	Day rate (£)
Lead Consultant		

2.5.11 Please provide the costs for stages 2 and 3 in the following tables. The Council will not be assessing these for the purposes of this commission, however may call off from these should it is determined to proceed with the successful supplier for subsequent stages. This decision is at the complete discretion of the Council.

		Cost Description (add/remove rows as required)	Cost exc. VAT (£)
	Stage 2		
1			
2			
3			
		Total Cost:	£

		Cost Description (add/remove rows as required)	Cost exc. VAT (£)
	Stage 3		
1			
2			
3			
	·	Total Cost:	£

2.5.12 Please note the stages 2 & 3 are subject to the Council approval (stage 2) and finding relevant partners (Stage 3). The Council cannot commit to any costs in these stages until the relevant progress is made. The cost could be update following the work in stage 1. Any revision would need to be agreed with the Council. The Council reserve the right to re-run the commission for stages 2&3.

2.6. Delivery of stages

2.6.1. Our provisional timescales are given below. The agent/broker should state in their submission when the project can commence and how long each stage is likely to take. The below are indicative timelines and can be changed to reflect the agent/broker's proposed methodology.

Stage	Approx. Date	Milestones
1. Inception Meeting	w/c 21 November	Inception meeting to confirm the
	2022	programme of activity
2. Proposed methodology	w/c 28 th November	Outline stage 1 methodology and
	2022	high-level route map for stage 2
3. Stakeholder engagement	5th December	Engagement with officers,
as per stage 1 work	2022–15th January	Member Steering Group, and
	2023	other identified stakeholders to
		develop stage 1 proposals.
4. Draft Stage 1 proposal	w/c 16 th & w/c 23 rd	Feedback session(s)
	January 2023	
5. Final Report Due	25 th January 2023	Final report provided to MSDC
6. Stage 2 and 3	Tbc	This should be outlined as general
		approach / timings/costs. Details
		will be finalised as part of stage 1
		work.

3. Quality Questions – Quality Score

	Question	Quality Weighting
1	Please demonstrate your previous experience of successfully developing briefing packs for similar projects with multiple stakeholders.	25
2	Please demonstrate your previous experience of successfully marketing similar projects, managing the procurement exercise, and negotiating and finalising the agreement on similar projects. You are advised to provide case studies to supplement your response.	25
3	Please outline your methodology or approach to deliver stage 1, 2 and 3. Please make sure you cover developing the briefing pack. You should also include stakeholder management and managing any possible risks and issues. Please outline how you will deliver a process that is robust, detail orientated and will leave the council with a watertight contracted arrangement. You will be required to include information about the staff allocated to the project, including roles and responsibilities. You are advised to provide CVs to supplement your response.	40
4	Include a project plan and timetable showing clearly how you would meet the aims and objectives to produce the required report in the timescale available. Please include communications milestones to explain how you will share information and keep us up to date with progress.	10

Important Notes for Completion

- 3.1.2. Your response to each of the questions above will account for your overall quality score. When responding to the method statement questions, please ensure that you clearly mark on the documentation which question they relate to.
- 3.1.3. You will be scored on a scale of 0 to 5 as detailed within "Appendix C The Procurement Process". There is a maximum total score of 500 available. The formula for determining the overall quality score will be; your total quality score / 500 (the maximum score available) x 40% weighting.
- 3.1.4. Please be concise and do not provide marketing information or leaflets as part of your response, these will not be scored. You may include appendices if they are essential to support your submission, however, please note that these should be kept to a minimum and only be used to provide evidence or an example. Please refrain from submitting generic policies, or procedures.

Appendix A – key background documents

All other relevant information is included at the Cabinet reports:

- <u>20th December 2021, this includes the outcomes of resident engagement and consultation</u>
- <u>18th July 2022, this includes BOP's interim findings</u>
- <u>17th October 2022</u>, this includes <u>BOP's final recommendations</u>

All data gathered and further information can be access at the engagement hub for the project. This includes title/legal report, planning report, condition survey, asbestos survey, tree survey, topo survey.

Developing community facility options for the Clair Hall site | EngagementHub (midsussex.gov.uk)

Appendix B – Strategic Success Criteria

- 1. At its July meeting, the Cabinet agreed a set of success criteria which will focus the Council's aspirations for the future of the Clair Hall site. The criteria draw on local ambitions for the site and respond to the local context and the financial environment within which any investment ideas would need to be delivered. They are a key element of the project as they will be used in the next phase as the framework for the evaluation of the potential models for the site.
- 2. In the first instance, the Cabinet agreed a set of non-negotiable positions within which any options will be considered:
 - The Council will not sell the site;
 - Any organisation or operation based on the site must be self-funding to avoid being a drain on council tax payers;
 - The Council recognises that combining a variety of uses on the site may offer the best opportunity to make any culture/leisure offer viable and impactful for residents. This would have to take place within the parameters of the Council's planning and economic development policies and strategies.
- 3. Strategic success criteria were agreed covering the following areas:
 - **Profile and Ambition** the level of ambition for the site and what sort of profile MSDC expect to see for it.
 - **Financial** the financial parameters within which options for the site will be developed.
 - **Strategic Impact** the social, economic and/or cultural impact that options for this site will deliver and how the use of the site will align with existing strategies.
- 4. The agreed criteria are shown below; they are not weighted or prioritised other than by being categorised as Essential (shown in bold) or Desirable:

Profile and	Ambition
Essential	The use of the site must fill identified gap(s) in local cultural / leisure provision. The site must be flexible, multi-functional and future-proof. The site must offer a memorable and positive first impression.
	The site and any buildings on it will celebrate the local beauty of the surrounding area by opening up and promoting connectivity with Clair Park.
	The site will provide a cultural / leisure offer for the whole of the Haywards Heath community (existing and future).
Desirable	The site will offer a destination with a reach across the district.

	The site will raise the profile of culture and act as a catalyst for culture/creativity in the town.	
Financial		
Essential	The site will be leased on a long-term basis.	
Desirable	A financial return to the Council will be realised from the site.	
Desilable	No capital investment will be required for the site.	
Strategic Im	pact	
EssentialThe use of the site must enhance town centre living, providing activities and delivering impact during daytime and evening.EssentialThe site must take measures to reduce carbon emissions, including improvements in energy efficiency and in the design and construction of buildings. This includes new buildings and the conversions of existing buildings.		
Desirable	The use of the site will act as an exemplar for striking successful partnerships across the public, private and third sectors. The use of the site will contribute to the economic development of Haywards Heath through the creation of employment opportunities. The use of this site will capitalise on the local world-class digital infrastructure.	

Appendix C – The Procurement Process

Quotation Documents

- 1. The submission, documentation, and contractual arrangements for the carrying out of this work shall be treated by both parties as private and confidential, only for use in the preparation of the project and shall not be disclosed to any third party without the prior consent of both parties.
- 2. The documents, contracts and final reports used in or arising from this project shall remain the property of the Council and may not be used for any other purpose without the Council's prior consent. Any copyright or intellectual property rights will rest with the Council.
- **3.** Some information in relation to this project may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Timescales

4. The timetable for the award of this contract is as follows in the Table below

Event	Date		
Deadline for Submission of Quotations	Wednesday 16 November 2022 at 12:00 (Noon)		
Interview of Two Highest Scoring	Monday 21 November 2022 tbc		
Responses (see below)			
Contract Award Notification	Tuesday 22 November 2022 tbc		
Initiation Meeting/Contract Start Date	Thursday 24 November 2022 tbc		
Contract End Date	tbc		

Evaluation Criteria

5. Once the Quotations have been received, the Council will assess the Bids on the basis of the Most Economically Advantageous Tender (MEAT) which combines price and quality. The price-quality ratio will be as follows;

Quality	40%
Price	60%

Quality Evaluation

6. The quality evaluation will be based on an assessment of your responses to a series of quality questions as detailed in Appendix A. Each method statement has a different weighting which is shown in the right-hand column next to the question. The response to each question will be evaluated as detailed in the table below and the score awarded will be multiplied by the question weighting to produce the total score for each question.

Score	Classification	Definition			
0	Unacceptable	No response, or totally unacceptable and does not meet the requirement in any way.			
1	Inadequate	Substantially inadequate and does not meet the Council's expectations in some significant areas. Response lacks detail and/or is inconsistent. Where required, no examples or evidence provided.			
2	Weak	Weak response that does not fully meet the Council's requirements in many areas. Response may lack detail or, where required, little evidence given to support or demonstrate sufficiency or compliance.			
3	Satisfactory	Response largely meets the requirements and, where required, evidence is given to support the answers. There may be one or two minor omissions but overall able to demonstrate sufficiency.			
4	Good	Good response where all the requirements are met and, where required, evidence is provided to support the answers demonstrating sufficiency and compliance.			
5	Excellent	Exceptional response that inspires confidence, specification is fully met and is robustly, concisely, and clearly demonstrated. When required full evidence as to how the service will be achieved is provided. The response demonstrates good understanding of the brief and offers innovative solutions and demonstrates a desire for continuous improvement.			

- 7. The total maximum quality score is 500 marks.
- 8. Example:

If a question has a weighting of 10 the maximum point awarded for the method statement response is 50 for that question. For example, if a submission answer is deemed a 'Good' response then that response will be awarded 40 points.

4 (Good) x 10 (Method Statement Weighting) = 40

Once each method statement response has been awarded a score as detailed above, each bidder will be awarded a total quality score. It is this total quality score that will be used in order to calculate a quality percentage score, using the following formula:

$$\left(\frac{Bidder's \, Total \, Quality \, Score}{500}\right) x \, 40\%$$

Price Evaluation

- **9.** The price element of the evaluation will be an assessment of the financial submission contained in the pricing table for stage 1. The financial evaluation will account for 60% of the overall score.
- **10.** The bidder who submits the lowest price will receive the full 60%. All rates charged should be fully inclusive of all expenses incurred, including but not limited to business travel, accommodation, office support services.
- **11.** Other Bids will be scored according to their relation to the lowest offer. In this quotation, the following formula will be used;

$\left(\frac{lowest \ price \ bid}{bid \ being \ evaluated}\right) x 60\%$

Contract Award and Interviews

- 12. Once the Quality and Price assessment stages have been concluded, the scores will be added together and the two highest scoring bidders will be invited for an interview to review their submission. If any other submissions are within 5% of the total score, then the bidder(s) will also be invited to attend an interview.
- 13. The interviews will be based on the bidder's responses to quality questions 3 and 4, and the Council reserves the right to reduce the bidder's score for each of those questions, depending on responses provided.
- **14.** After the interviews, the Council will re-visit the interviewed bidders' quality scores, in accordance with the above. The bidder with the highest quality and price score will become the Preferred Bidder.
- **15.** Upon making a contract award decision, the Council will notify all Bidders in writing of the outcome.

Questions/ Clarifications

16. All questions regarding this quotation should be submitted by email to <u>rafal.hejne@midsussex.gov.uk</u> on or before Tuesday 1st November 2022. Bidders are asked to submit any questions in good time, especially any which could hinder bidders from being able to submit a Bid.

Submission of Bids

17. Bids must be received via email:

Wednesday, 16 November 2022 at 12:00 (Noon)

- 18. Bids submitted after the time and date shown may be rejected by the Council.
- **19.** The Council reserves the right to reject incomplete Bids.
- **20.** Bidders will not be able to provide additional documentation after the Quotation closing date and time other than information that may be requested by the Council as part of a clarification process.

General Notes for Completion

- **21.** The Council reserves the right to reject a quotation that does not fully comply with these instructions.
- **22.** Your quotation must be completed in English and must be submitted no later than the closing date (stated above). It must be completed in full and where necessary, signed and dated.
- **23.** Any quotation submitted will be deemed to remain open for acceptance or non-acceptance for 90 days or more from the closing date stated below.
- **24.** The Council is not bound to accept the lowest or any quotation.
- **25.** The Council will provide a contract post award.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

REVIEW OF EARMARKED RESERVES

REPORT OF:	Director, Resources and Organisational Development
Contact Officer:	Rachel Jarvis, Assistant Director, Resources
	rachel.jarvis@midsussex.gov.uk
Wards Affected:	All
Key Decision:	Yes
Report to:	Cabinet
-	19 December 2022

Purpose of Report

1. To outline the proposals following a review of the earmarked reserves to ensures they continue to support the council effectively.

Summary

- 2. A diligent review of the earmarked reserves has been undertaken which overall sees a contribution back to the general reserve of £271k.
- 3. Cabinet are recommended to:
 - (i) Agree the release of earmarked reserves of £471k to the General Reserve;
 - (ii) Agree to top up the Burgess Hill Growth Reserve by £200k from the General Reserve.
 - (iii) Agree to combine the following reserves; the Management Restructure Reserve the JE (Job Evaluation) Reserve and the Efficiency Reserve.
 - (iv) To rename this reserve the Organisational Development and Efficiency Reserve

Background

- 4. Reserves play an important role in the ongoing sustainability and robustness of the council's finances. It is crucial to bear in mind that the reserves are the only source of financing to which the Council has access to fund risks and one-off pressures as well as investments to deliver place based improvements and to facilitate efficient and effective business transformation over a number of years. If the council minimises the level of reserves too significantly there is a risk that in the future, the ability to properly manage unforeseen or one off costs will be significantly hampered. Reserves can only be spent once and the possibility of creating new reserves in an era where budgets are tight is limited.
- 5. Reserves are a key element of the Council's financial management arrangements and can be broadly categorised as follows:

General Reserve - a working balance to manage in-year risks if they cannot be managed via other mitigations. It is best practice for a well-run authority to hold such a balance to assist in delivering services in-year and over a longer period. This reserve also includes reserve set aside for the Capital Programme.

Earmarked Reserves - funds that are held to meet known or anticipated future one-off requirements, facilitating transformation and the management and mitigation of future anticipated financial risk and uncertainty.

Capital Receipts Reserve – receipts from the sale of assets that are available to finance future capital expenditure.

- 6. In the ongoing uncertain financial and economic climate some councils have been close to collapse as they have grappled with the challenge of delivering services within a difficult financial landscape, combined with the considerable costs and pressures presented by high inflation and a cost-of-living crisis. That uncertainty is brought into sharp focus given the lack of clarity about what funding will be provided for councils in future years. It is essential that we maintain sufficient reserves to weather this period of uncertainty. It therefore continues to be a priority to, where possible, bolster reserves while also using them to support the development of efficient services that safeguard the councils' services for the future.
- 7. A diligent and detailed review has therefore been undertaken of the authorities reserves to ensure that they continue to support the authority. The following paragraphs detail the proposed updates.

Review to release earmarked reserves

8. A review of current earmarked reserves has been undertaken and £471k of reserves have been identified that can be released back to the general reserve. This has highlighted areas where spend can be more accurately forecast or has completed, thus liberating reserves from these specific areas. This includes reductions in the size of the Development Plan and Neighbourhood Planning reserves, the closure of the ICT reserve and a number of other small reserves reductions. This will help top up unearmarked funding where it has previously been depleted, in particularly in recent years as a result of the pandemic, and increase support for council priorities. A list of reserves that have been identified as available to release are provided below.

Reserve Released

£

Neighbourhood Planning Non Frontrunners	50,000.00
Development Plan Reserve (Studies and EIP costs)	250,000.00
CPO Fund for Empty Homes	10,000.00
Martlets Temporary Urban Park	70,000.00
Asset Maintenance and Landscapes	7,763.08
Planned Asset maintenance Specific Reserve	21,268.76
Choice Based Lettings Scheme SR	11,920.17
ICT reserve	8,019.13
Land Charges Development*	23,100.00
LA EU Exit Preparation	18,515.00
	470,586.14

Burgess Hill Growth Reserve

- 9. A bid has been submitted to the Levelling Up Fund 2 (LUF) as part of a wider package of proposals in order to help unlock the Burgess Hill Town Centre development. The outcome of this bid is awaited but is expected imminently. Should it be successful, work on the delivery of the first phase of the scheme will need to commence immediately.
- 10. In the meantime, work is ongoing with NRR to develop a strategy, in the event that the LUF bid is not successful, to unlock the first phase of the development.

- 11. In order to take this project forward at pace, the Council will need to procure the services of a range of specialist external advisors, at an estimated cost of £200k; including:
- External Real Estate advice
- External legal advice
- Specialist consultancy advice on parking matters

Merging Reserves to facilitate business change and organisational development

- 12. The Job Evaluation (JE) Reserve, Efficiency Reserve and the Management Restructure reserve (previously Redundancy Specific Reserve) have always been closely linked. While the management Restructure is nearly complete a review of staffing structures continues, alongside the need to modernise and create efficiencies where possible. The JE reserve is created by the need to provide for a structural budget provision once the job evaluation is completed, a programme which will begin in 2023. Once the JE is completed, services will require their budgets to be uplifted, this base provision ensures there the limit or elimination of any consequent pressure. The Efficiency Reserve enables one off costs to be supported in delivering business change and organisational development. It is therefore proposed that the three reserves are merged and aligned more to their original purpose and named Organisational Development and Efficiency Reserve
- 13. This reserve would then also be used, as originally intended, for the one off costs of the JE and broader restructure, and the delivery of business change including consultancy fees and redundancy.
- 14. Appendix 1 summarises the proposed changes to reserves; noting that the current reserves position is at a point in time and will change with use.

Policy Context

15. Reserves are maintained in accordance with the Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

Financial Implications

16. The financial implications are detailed within the body of the report.

Risk Management Implications

17. There are no implications as a direct consequence of this report

Equality and Customer Service Implications

18. There are no implications as a direct consequence of this report.

Other Material Implications

19. There are no further implications as a direct consequence of this report.

Sustainability Implications

20. There are no implications as a direct consequence of this report.

Background Papers

None

Appendix 1

Specific Reserve	31/03/2022 Opening Balance	Approved (Contributions)	Proposed (Contributions) Draws	Used to date (does not include full year revenue transactions)	31/03/2023 Estimated Closing Balance
	£	£	£	£	£
SA01 - Development Management	(10,047.00)				(10,047.00)
SA02 - Planning Policy	(2,106,344.60)	(320,000.00)	300.000.00		(2,126,344.60)
SA03 - Housing Enabling	(89,298.70)	(* *,*** * *)	10,000.00		(79,298.70)
SA04 - Economic Development & Sustainability	(464,910.04)		(200,000.00)		(664,910.04)
SA06 - Environmental Health	(26,981.47)	(5,200.00)	()		(32,181.47)
SA07 - Community Services	(113,066.50)	(0,2000)			(113,066.50)
SA08 - Partnerships	(,)				(,
SA10 - Cleansing Services	(28,322.87)				(28,322.87)
SA11- Landscapes and Leisure	(218,857.32)	(100,000.00)	70,000.00		(248,857.32)
SA12 - Parking Services	(17,252.75)	(· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	.,		(17,252.75)
SA15 - Facilities	(124,783.84)		29,031.84		(95,752.00)
SA16 - Estates	(5,115,821.16)		.,		(5,115,821.16)
SA17- Building Control	(-, -,,				(-, -,,
SA18 - Revenues & Benefits	(738,703.60)	(465,638.60)		87,999.60	(1,116,342.60)
SA19 - Housing Needs	(758,290.27)	(134,963.00)	11,920.17	. ,	(881,333.10)
SA20 - Customer Services	(,	()	,•=•···		(
SA21 - Digital &Technology	(46,524.55)		8,019.13		(38,505.42)
SA22 - Democratic Services	(132,794.03)		.,		(132,794.03)
SA23 - Legal Services	(- , ,				(, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
SA24 - Land Charges	(23,100.00)		23,100.00		
SA25 - Finance Accountancy	(12,000.00)		20,100.00		(12,000.00)
SA28 - Planning and Building Control Support	(,)				(,)
SA29 - PMO & Service Redesign					
SA32- Human Resources & Organsational Development	1				
SA34 - Communications, PR & Community Engagemen	(233,992.78)	(150,000.00)			(383,992.78)
SA38 - Corporate Funds	(10,771,260.13)	(100,000100)	18,515.00	6,245,265.00	(4,507,480.13)
JE Reserve	(565, 152.86)	(532,000.00)		-,,	(,,,
Management Restructure	(161,381.79)	(,)		•	(1,611,022.75)
Efficiency Reserve	(352,488.10)				() · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
other finance corporate reserves	(221,711.61)				(221,711.61)
SA39 - Total Finance Corporate	(1,300,734.36)	(532,000.00)			(1,832,734.36)
SA40 - Strategic Core	(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	(,,			(.,,
Total Specific Reserves	(22,333,085.97)	(1,707,801.60)	270,586.14	6,333,264.60	(17,437,036.83)
General Reserve	31/03/2022	Contributions		Used	31/03/2023
	£	£		£	£
Unallocated Balance	(5,414,689.44)	(2,455,655.00)	(270,586.14)	1,473,000.00	(6,667,930.58)
Allocated Balance	(3,970,301.96)	(2,400,000.00)	(270,300.14)	1,473,000.00	(3,970,301.96)
sub total	(9,384,991.40)	(2,455,655.00)	(270,586.14)	1,473,000.00	(10,638,232.54)
SUD TOTAL	(3,364,331.40)	(2,400,000.00)	(∠/0,566.14)	1,473,000.00	(10,038,232.54)
Total General Reserves	(9,384,991.40)	(2,455,655.00)	(270,586.14)		(10,638,232.54)